
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 

 
Agenda 

Page 1 of 2 

 

Children and Young People 
Scrutiny Panel 
23 July 2014 

 
Time 
 

6.00 pm Public Meeting? YES Type of meeting Scrutiny 

Venue 
 

Committee Room 1 - Civic Centre, St Peter's Square, Wolverhampton WV1 1SH 

Membership 
 

Chair Cllr Julie Hodgkiss (Lab) 
Vice-chair Cllr Mark Evans (Con) 
 

Labour Conservative Liberal Democrat 

Cllr Susan Constable 
Cllr Dr Michael Hardacre 
Cllr Paula Brookfield 
Cllr Lorna McGregor 
Cllr Peter O'Neill 
Cllr Martin Waite 
Cllr Daniel Warren 
Cllr Jas Dehar 
 

Cllr Christopher Haynes 
 

Cllr Michael Heap 
 

Quorum for this meeting is five Councillors. 
 

Information for the Public 
 

If you have any queries about this meeting, please contact the democratic support team: 

Contact Earl Piggott-Smith 
Tel/Email Tel: 01902 551251or earl.piggott-smith@wolverhampton.gov.uk 
Address Democratic Support, Civic Centre, 2nd floor, St Peter’s Square, 

Wolverhampton WV1 1RL 
 

Copies of other agendas and reports are available from: 
 

Website  wolverhampton.moderngov.co.uk 

Email democratic.support@wolverhampton.gov.uk  

Tel 01902 555043 

 

Please take note of the protocol for filming, recording, and use of social media in meetings, copies of 
which are displayed in the meeting room. 
 
Some items are discussed in private because of their confidential or commercial nature. These reports 
are not available to the public. 
 



 [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 
 

 
Agenda 

Page 2 of 2 

 
 
 
 
Agenda 

 

Part 1 – items open to the press and public 
 
Item No. Title 

 
1 Apologies for absence  
 

2 Declarations of interest  
 

3 Minutes of the previous meeting ( 26.3.14 ) (Pages 1 - 6) 
 [To approve the minutes of the previous meeting as a correct record.] 

 

4 Matters arising  
 [To consider any matters arising from the minutes.] 

 

PRE DECISION SCRUTINY ITEMS 
 
5 Draft Wolverhampton School Improvement Strategy (Pages 7 - 28) 
 [To scrutinise the Wolverhampton 2014 School Improvement Strategy before it is 

presented to the Senior Executive Board for a decision] 
 

INFORMATION ITEMS 
 
6 Learning and Achievement Structure Chart (Pages 29 - 30) 
 [To receive details of the Learning and Achievement employee structure chart] 

 
 



Children and Young People

Scrutiny Panel

Minutes – 26 March 2014

Attendance

Members of the Panel Other Councillors
Cllr Julie Hodgkiss (Chair)
Cllr Dr Michael Hardacre
Cllr Christine Mills
Cllr Peter O’Neill
Cllr Pat Patten
Cllr Stephen Simkins
Cllr Lorna McGregor
Cllr Susan Constable

Co-opted Members

Mrs Rosalie Watkins Representing Roman Catholic Church (Diocesan Schools
Commission)

Leanne Dack Parent Governor Representative
Hadeel Ahmed Parent Governor Representative
Kashmire Hawker Youth Council Representative
Stacey Atim-Uma Youth Council Representative
Venandah Madahni Youth Council Representative

Employees
James McElligott

John Welsby
Tessa Johnson
Andrew Scragg

Assistant Director Education and
Enterprise
Assistant Director Communities
Graduate Trainee
Youth Worker

Page 1



Part 1 – items open to the press and public

Item No. Title

MEETING BUSINESS ITEMS

1. Apologies
Apologies for absence were received from Cllr Heap, Cllr Rowley, Cllr
Brookfield and Portia Tsvangirai.

2. Declarations of interest

Cllr Hardacre declared an interest as a governor of Wolverhampton City

college and with matters relating to Heath Park school.

3. Minutes of the previous meetings (22 January 2014 and two sets from 28

January 2014)

The minutes were agreed as an accurate representation of the previous

meeting.

4. Matters arising

Venandah and Stacey clarified some points from the 6pm meeting on 28

January, page 16. Rather than £20,000 being provided for the youth council,

the money is being provided for youth participation in general. Also, the youth

council requested that the minutes reflect that they do not want to be based in

the Epic youth café and should be consulted.

5. New Ofsted single framework for inspecting local authority services

John Welsby presented the report. He told the panel that it was likely an
inspection would happen before September, probably at the end of April
2014. He emphasised that panel members needed to be aware of the process
of inspection as Ofsted may interview them. They primarily focus on front line
services but will review lines of reporting if there are cases which concern
them. Cllr O’Neill enquired what the levels of grading was applied, and JW
responded that the levels were outstanding, good, requires improvement or
inadequate.

Cllr Hodgkiss asked what grade the authority was likely to get. JW responded
that a draft self-assessment was currently underway. In 2011, ‘Child in need
and child protection’ was graded as adequate with good prospects for
improvement, which would now be ‘requires improvement’. JW told the panel
that they will probably be graded around ‘good’, as there have been
improvements made, but Ofsted standards have also got more stringent. He
admitted that there were areas which could be ‘requires improvement’ but that
overall it should be graded between ‘good’ and ‘requires improvement’.

Page 2



In 2011, services for LAC and care leavers were rated as ‘good’ but this rating
will probably drop this time due to increased pressures on services and
reducing resources.

Cyril Randles asked whether scrutiny procedures would be examined. JW
responded that corporate parenting board and safeguarding board would
probably be examined.

Cllr Simkins asked where this self-assessment report will go and JW said it
could be returned to the panel. Cllr Simkins also enquired as to how
partnership working was working in the council and JW reassured the panel
that the police and the medical services worked well alongside social workers.

JW suggested that a briefing on the way the inspection would work and what
to expect could be presented to members if so desired.

Cllr Hardacre asked whether education services would be inspected at the
same time as the children’s social care services and JW responded that it
would be unlikely. However he discussed how the two are very interlinked,
for example, LAC were not meant to attend a school rated as less than ‘good.’

Cllr O’Neil asked whether children would be moved when they become looked
after if they were in a school which was underachieving. JW told the panel
that usually this would not be the case, as it would disrupt the child even more
– instead, additional care would be taken to fill any gaps in educational
provision. If the school was persistently inadequate or if there were serious
concerns about safeguarding and bullying then they may consider moving the
child.

Cllr Simkins asked whether the removal of the early intervention grant would
affect the results of the social care provision. JW responded that the removal
of the EIG would affect services for children on the edge of care, rather than
provision for the most vulnerable.

6. Ofsted Reports

Cllr Hodgkiss thanked Jim McElligott for the level of detail in the report and
the raw data.

Cllr Mills asked how much support there was available to school needed help
after restructures. JW responded that there were 7 or 8 employees in the
team but further support was brokered in from trusted partners when
necessary. He informed the panel that the team are moving to do more risk
assessment based support, rather than a blanket approach, to deal with
reducing resources.

Kashmire spoke about Heath Park’s recent inspection, which was rated as
‘Outstanding’.

Page 3



Cllr Patten asked for more information regarding New Park special school,
and JM informed the panel that it had been placed in special measures, with a
new executive head and deputy put in place by the local authority. They had
taken direct and immediate action

Stacey enquired whether Wednesfield High would become an academy now it
has been rated as ‘Inadequate’. JM informed the board that they had already
been looking at becoming an academy before the inspection.

Cllr Hardacre enquired why the papers were not printed in colour. He spoke
about how the local authority’s school support provision had been mentioned
in Ofsted reports positively.

Cllr O’Neill spoke about the importance of knowing how pupil premium is
spent during Ofsted inspections and that there needed to be an in depth
report on how it was spent across the city as next year’s work programme.

Cllr Hodgkiss added that it was now compulsory for schools to publish what
they used their pupil premium for.

Cllr Simkins asked what actions the local authority can take if an academy
goes into special measures. JM responded that all the academies in the city
are still in contact with the local authority, so they would speak to them and
offer support. The authority would then pass their concerns onto Ofsted, and
then the Department of Education if they were not resolved.

Cllr Simkins stated that the authority should ensure that all parents are well
informed in the differences between academies and state controlled schools,
and how their processes work.
Stacey responded that she knew of academies where the parents had been
informed to a very high standard.

Leanne Dack spoke about her experience with Ofsted and that support from
the LA was focussed on the chair of governors and the head. JM reiterated
that it was the school’s responsibility to ensure their governors are well
briefed, but that the governor support function from the LA was being updated
and would provide more than just a clerk service. It was reiterated by the
panel that it was highly important to train governors well.

Cllr Hardacre added that local authority provision was dependent on schools
buying back services, and that the local authority did not receive any funding
for this support.

The panel agreed to receive the report on a regular basis.

The Chair thanked the members and the youth council members for their
attendance and John Welsby for his work with the panel over the years. The
Chair was thanked by the panel.

Page 4



Resolved:
 For a briefing on inspection of children’s social care to be provided, if

so desired
 To consider pupil premium as an item for the work programme next

year
 To consider the use of catch up funding as an item for the work

programme next year
 To receive the Ofsted inspection report regularly

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Report Pages
Page 1 of 3

Agenda Item No: 5

Children and Young People
Scrutiny Panel
23 July 2014

Report title Wolverhampton 2014 School Improvement
Strategy

Cabinet member with lead
responsibility

Councillor Philip Page
Schools, Skills and Learning

Wards affected All

Accountable director Tim Johnson, Education and Enterprise

Originating service Standards and Vulnerable Pupils

Accountable employee(s) James McElligott
Tel
Email

Assistant Director
01902 554177
James.McElligott@wolverhampton.gov.uk

Report to be considered
by

Strategic Executive Board September 2014

Recommendation for action or decision:

The Panel is recommended to:

1. Scrutinise the 2014 School Improvement Strategy and comment on the scope and
effectiveness of the plans in securing the highest possible standards of achievement in
all Wolverhampton schools.

Recommendation for noting:

The Panel is asked to note:

2. That this item is being considered as pre-decision scrutiny and will therefore not be
available to call-in once a decision is made by the Executive.

Page 7



This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Report Pages
Page 2 of 3

1.0 Purpose

1.1 In an increasingly autonomous school system where school improvement is put in the
hands of schools the revised School Improvement Strategy. The strategy sets out to
capture the role of the local authority in promoting high educational standards for all
children and young people, and to close the attainment gap.

1.2 The Children and Young People Scrutiny Panel is invited to scrutinise the contents of the
strategy and make any suggestions or recommendations that strengthen the council’s
ability to carry out its functions.

2.0 Background

2.1 Local authorities’ statutory responsibilities for educational excellence are set out in
section 13a of the Education Act 1996.

2.2 That duty states that a local authority must exercise its education functions with a
view to promoting high standards in primary and secondary schools. Local authorities
are discharging this duty within the context of increasing autonomy and changing
accountability for schools, alongside an expectation that improvement should be led
by schools themselves.

3.0 Discussion

3.1 The Wolverhampton 2014 School Improvement Strategy has been circulated to schools
and other key stakeholders for consultation. Responses will be analysed and
incorporated as necessary before a final draft is presented to the Strategic Executive
Board early in September 2014 for approval before circulation of the final version of the
strategy.

4.0 Financial implications

The cost of implementation and monitoring of the 2014 School Improvement Strategy
and the Councils statutory duties has been included in the approved revenue budget for
the Learning and Achievement service. There are no further financial implications arising
from this report. [CF/08072014/N]

5.0 Legal implications

5.1 Under Section 13 of the Education Act 1996 the Council has a duty to contribute to the
development of the community by securing efficient primary and secondary education in
the city. The Education Act 1996 also requires such functions to be carried out with a
view to promoting high standards. The 2014 School Improvement Strategy is intended to
ensure that the Council succeeds in delivering the requirements of Section 13 of the
Education Act 1996. [TS/02072014/V]

Page 8



This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Report Pages
Page 3 of 3

6.0 Equalities implications

6.1 There are no further implications for the Council’s Equalities policies arising from this
report.

7.0 Environmental implications

7.1 There are no direct environmental implications arising from this report.

8.0 Human resources implications

8.1 There are no direct human resources implications arising from this report.

9.0 Corporate landlord implications

9.1 There are no direct corporate landlord implications arising from this report.

10.0 Schedule of background papers

10.1 None

11.0 References

 1996 Education Act section 13a
 2006 Education and Inspections Act
 2010 White Paper ‘The Importance of Teaching’
 May 2014 ‘Schools Causing Concern – statutory guidance for local authorities’

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



Wolverhampton City Council - Draft School Improvement Strategy v5.0 - 27 June 2014

1

School Improvement Strategy
INTRODUCTION
The council’s vision is to create an education system in Wolverhampton that promotes higher standards

for all children and young people and closes the attainment gap. This needs to reflect a system where the

council celebrates school autonomy and supports school leaders and teachers in leading school

improvement and having the highest expectations of every child and young person.

We believe that all families in Wolverhampton want their children and young people to succeed in an

education system that values and celebrates high standards of education where no child is left behind as

they master basic learning skills within a broad and balanced curriculum that prepares all children to

become confident and responsible adult citizens.

We are also aware of the need to ensure that our education system equips our children with the skills for

the future economic prosperity of the city which will be key to attracting and retaining a high quality

workforce.

Our ambition is to build a school system where high quality education is delivered in all schools. We

believe that a successful school system is not a collection of individual schools interested only in their own

pupils but one where schools, working with others, accept responsibility for all Wolverhampton pupils as

well as delivering high standards for their own children and young people.

This will lead to a position in Wolverhampton where schools prosper in a self-sustaining interdependent

school system and where high achieving schools work with other schools to ensure excellence and

improvement. By working together schools can develop local improvement partnerships which together

with the council would act as the champion of pupils and families particularly our most vulnerable pupils.

This Strategy seeks to demonstrate that Wolverhampton City Council:

 has systems in place to ensure it is well informed about the quality of schools’ provision and can

assess the risk of schools underperforming or facing a serious decline in performance;

 maintains an excellent working relationship with all schools, including academies, so that early

support and advice can be offered when required;

 identifies potential weakness in maintained schools and ensures that arrangements are in place for

differentiated support, timely intervention, or direction where needed;

 works with schools and other providers to develop effective strategies for ensuring high standards

and a narrowing of the attainment gap between disadvantaged children and young people and

their peers;

 ensures that school performance data is analysed to show strengths and areas for development,

which are transparently shared with schools.

Tim Johnson Councillor Phil Page Dr James McElligott

Strategic Director

Education and Enterprise

Cabinet Member for Schools

Skills and Learning
Assistant Director

Education and Enterprise

Page 11



Wolverhampton City Council - Draft School Improvement Strategy v5.0 - 27 June 2014

2

1. Statutory context
A local authority’s statutory responsibilities for educational excellence are set out in section 13a of

the Education Act 1996. That duty states that a local authority must exercise its education functions

with a view to promoting high standards. Local authorities are discharging this duty within the

context of increasing autonomy and changing accountability for schools, alongside an expectation

that improvement should be led by schools themselves. Where a local authority has concerns about

academy performance it must raise them directly with the Department for Education.

In the context of this new relationship between the local authority and schools, the Education and

Inspections Act 2006 defined the strategic role of the local authority in the school improvement

process. The Act sets out the role of every local authority:

 as ‘champion’ of the needs of children and young people and their families;

 in the planning, commissioning and quality assurance of educational services; and,

 in challenging schools and, where appropriate, to commission support and, if necessary, to

intervene in the management and governance of the school.

The 2006 Act requires local authorities to respond to parental concerns about the quality of local

schools and grants new powers to intervene earlier where performance is poor. Part 4 of the Act sets

out measures for tackling school underperformance by:

 enabling early action to tackle school underperformance so that it does not become

entrenched and lead to formal school failure;

 ensuring that effective support and challenge is provided immediately when unacceptable

standards are identified, so that improvements can be made quickly; and

 securing decisive action if a school in Special Measures fails to make sufficient progress, so

that the education and life chances of pupils are safeguarded.

The Act differentiates between absolute low attainment (below floor targets) and relative under-

performance where there may be declining or static performance by children and young people,

under-performance by specific groups, or in specific subject areas. In all cases, early intervention is

seen as the key in preventing school failure.

The Act gives revised powers to the local authority to intervene in schools causing concern:

 ‘Schools Causing Concern – statutory guidance for local authorities’ (2014) is available on:

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/schools-causing-concern. It builds on existing

statutory powers to ensure that every child is provided with the education and opportunities

they deserve.

DfE statutory guidance (Schools Causing Concern, May 2014) points out that ‘local authorities should

focus their school improvement activity on the schools they maintain’, raising any concerns they

have about an academy’s performance directly with the Department for Education. However,

Wolverhampton will always seek to work pro-actively with all Wolverhampton’s schools, irrespective

of governance arrangements.

Refer to Appendix E for an overview of how the guidance on schools causing concern will be applied

in Wolverhampton.

Wolverhampton City Council believes that effective schools integrate their duties to achieve high

attainment and progress, with their statutory safeguarding, admissions, and inclusion duties. This

strategy therefore integrates the monitoring of these duties with that of attainment and progress.

Statutory guidance related to these and related duties on head teachers and governing bodies is at

https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/statutory-guidance-schools

Page 12



Wolverhampton City Council - Draft School Improvement Strategy v5.0 - 27 June 2014

3

2. Shared principles

2.1 The outcomes of every child or young person in Wolverhampton is a collective
responsibility
Though responsibility for improvement rests with individual schools as self-managing institutions,

Wolverhampton City Council has a statutory duty (see Section 1, above) to challenge and, where it

deems it necessary, to undertake timely intervention in schools to raise standards. This strategy

clarifies the responsibilities of the school and of the council. It also outlines how the council will fulfil

its duties as it seeks to:

 ensure that every child in Wolverhampton has an excellent education;

 raise standards in schools and academies so that attainment and progress measures at all key

stages match or exceed national averages;

 improve the quality of provision in schools and academies so that all schools, settings and

academies achieve an Ofsted inspection judgement of good or outstanding;

 contribute to the over-arching aims of the council’s strategic objectives.

2.2 Transparency, mutual trust and partnership are important
This strategy is intended to provide a clear and transparent, common and robust process for

identification good practice and causes for concern. It aims to enable a differentiated response to

the diverse needs for improvement that a school may experience. It identifies a range of

quantitative and qualitative evidence which will influence the council’s judgement on the

effectiveness of each school and sets out the system of risk-assessment used to identify which

schools are ‘on track’, which are ‘vulnerable’, and which are ‘at serious risk’.

The starting point for improvement is each school’s responsibility to undertake effective self-

evaluation. Schools will be asked to share their self-evaluation with council officers who will

integrate it into their judgements. Those judgements will be promptly and transparently shared with

head teachers and governors. If the council deems it necessary to intervene it will always aim to do

so in partnership with head teachers and governors.

2.3 Strong leadership, management and governance are essential
Head teachers and governors are ultimately responsible for the performance of the schools they

lead. The quality of school governance and the governing body’s capacity to hold the school head

teacher and senior team appropriately to account is critical in ensuring a school improves and

continues to provide great learning for the children it serves. Governance will, therefore, be subject

to judgements of effectiveness alongside more traditional areas for school improvement as part of

the schools essential leadership and management.

2.4 School-to-school support is vital
This strategy promotes the autonomy and accountability of head teachers within a school

improvement partnership that is built on strong professional relationships. It aims to create a

climate of council and school interdependence and trust. School-to-school support, and the

development of effective system leadership in Wolverhampton, is the key to achieving sustained

improvement among the city’s community of schools. The council will therefore support and

challenge partnerships of schools (including multi-academy trusts, cooperative trusts, and their

sponsors or proprietors) as it does individual schools.

Page 13



Wolverhampton City Council - Draft School Improvement Strategy v5.0 - 27 June 2014

4

3. Mutual expectations and responsibilities

School improvement in Wolverhampton, as elsewhere, is primarily the responsibility of schools and

the authority places the following at the forefront of its approach:

 coordinating partnership arrangements and expertise residing within schools

 promoting sector led improvement and engaging system leaders to support and challenge

schools in need of extra support

 brokering or commissioning effective school to school support for leadership and

management where it is needed.

All of these require successful partnership working which is, in turn, built on mutually understood

expectations and responsibilities:

3.1 Wolverhampton City Council
The council directly, and in partnership with the Wolverhampton Safeguarding Children Board, will

act decisively to ensure that all children and young people are:

 making progress in learning; and,

 appropriately cared for, and safeguarded to secure their well-being.

The council anticipates that all academies in Wolverhampton will continue to collaborate, alongside

maintained schools, to secure the wellbeing of all children and young people. In doing so all schools

are asked to ensure that their systems recognise vulnerable children and those in need of care and

protection, as well as those whose wellbeing is potentially compromised, or those at risk of not

reaching their educational potential.

Appendix H summarises the line management and responsibilities of the services working with and

for children, families and schools in Wolverhampton. All the officers working across these services

will …

 offer head teachers, governors and school staff challenge and support relevant to those

officers’ work with schools, children or families;

 contribute to developing a rounded view of a school and its practice and the risk assessment

of a school’s vulnerability, through feedback to SMART (see Appendix A).

3.2 The School Standards Team will …
 seek to build a strong working relationship with every school serving Wolverhampton’s

children whether a maintained school or an academy;

 identify a named School Standards officer for each school, including academies;

 provide a core entitlement of challenge and feedback to every school;

 make a judgement on each school’s current effectiveness based on annual outcomes, trends,

in year measures, and other available evidence (see Section 4);

 ensure regular review of this judgement, sharing it with the school at regular intervals;

 report to governors and the Standards and Vulnerable Pupil Monitoring Group (SVPMG – see

Appendix C), or the Secretary of State through the proxy designated by guidance, in the case

of the an academy;

 maintain a directory of good practice found in Wolverhampton schools;

 trade a range of additional support to schools (see Appendix G)

Additionally, if the school is maintained, the School Standards Team will:

 broker appropriate support or undertake intervention, as necessary;

 be involved with the OfSTED inspection process as required by the current inspection

framework;

 be involved in head teacher recruitment as required by current guidance.

Page 14



Wolverhampton City Council - Draft School Improvement Strategy v5.0 - 27 June 2014

5

3.3 Head teachers, governors, and academy sponsors or proprietors
All schools educating Wolverhampton children and young people will be challenged to provide the

best learning opportunities possible, and close the achievement gap for the most vulnerable children

and young people. Given its responsibilities to all children and young people in Wolverhampton, the

council will actively seek to work with academies, as it works with maintained schools.

The council expects that all head teachers, all governors, and all academy sponsors or proprietors

serving Wolverhampton’s children …

 recognise their direct accountability for the outcomes those children achieve;

 understand, and carry out, their statutory duties;

 recognise their obligation to the education of all Wolverhampton children, as well as those

on their school roll, sharing good practice and expertise to support all schools to improve;

 accept their responsibility to be self-evaluative;

 take responsibility for shaping their own professional development, and that of the staff of

the school they lead, to meet the needs of the communities they serve;

 accept responsibility to make best use of the challenge and feedback provided by the

council, and to act on it to create a sustainable trend of improvement.

Appendix F provides a brief overview of governor roles and responsibilities, and offers advice on

governor skill mix, recruitment and self-evaluation.

3.4 Teaching Schools and Teaching School Alliances can …
 play a role in the recruitment and training of new entrants to the profession;

 lead peer-to-peer professional and leadership development;

 identify and develop leadership potential;

 provide support for other schools in partnership with the council;

 propose, designate, and broker Specialist Leaders of Education (SLEs);

 engage in locality action-research and development of practice.

4. Local authority judgement of school effectiveness

4.1 Local Authority identification of good school practice
Officers of Wolverhampton Council, whether from the School Standards Team or not, will always

seek to identify and share good practice they encounter in their work with schools. They will always

seek to celebrate and disseminate such practice locally, regionally and nationally.

4.2 Local Authority identification of schools causing concern
The council will make, and keep under close review, a judgement of each Wolverhampton school. In

making a judgement of whether the school is vulnerable or a cause for concern it will take account

of a variety of evidence available to it, including:

4.2.1 Ofsted/HMI judgement that the school:
 requires ‘Special Measures’ (or the school has a Notice to Improve), or ‘Requires

Improvement’

 is ‘Satisfactory’, but inspection highlighted aspects of the school as requiring improvement;

 is making ‘inadequate progress’ following an Ofsted monitoring visit.

4.2.2 The leadership, management and governance in the school:
 the governing body, or head teacher, are not fulfilling their statutory duties;

 the governing body:

o lacks sufficient capacity &/or capability to hold the school leadership to account; or

o is subject to a formal warning notice; or

o has had delegated powers removed; or

Page 15



Wolverhampton City Council - Draft School Improvement Strategy v5.0 - 27 June 2014

6

o fails to take appropriate and timely action in response to an external review or audit;

 the school’s senior leadership team lacks sufficient capacity or experience, or is subject to

significant change;

 the number of parental/carer complaints is high and/or the school’s response to them is

inappropriate or inadequate.

4.2.3 Analysis of outcomes shows:
 the school is failing to meet national floor standards for attainment and/or progress;

 the school’s attainment levels are lower than might be expected of similar schools;

 the value-added/pupil progress scores for the school are below average;

 the attendance/persistent absence of children is of concern;

 the exclusion rate is a cause for concern;

 attainment and/or progress gaps are larger than might be expected;

 one or more groups of vulnerable pupils, or pupils in receipt of pupil premium, are over-

represented in terms of poor attainment, progress, attendance/persistent absence, or among

those at risk of, or being, excluded.

 trend in the indicators above are a cause for concern;

 outreach, or resourced, provision, is not meeting its objectives.
(Trends in outcomes are, by their nature, historic and so will not cloud views based on current evidence.)

4.2.4Safeguarding and inclusion practice is of concern to council officers:
In particular, but not exclusively, related to schools’ statutory duties:

 safeguarding protocols and operational practice (including timely completion of Section 11

Audits);

 the school response to challenging behaviour among pupils;

 admissions arrangements, and contribution to and/or compliance with, the in-year fair access

protocol;

 the keeping of the school register;

 the use, and monitoring, of alternative provision.

4.2.5Financial and personnel management is of concern to council officers:
In particular, but not exclusively, related to schools’ statutory duties:

 financial management, including where a significant fall in numbers/predicted numbers may

lead to budget deficit;

 financial challenges that reduce the school’s ability to maintain appropriate quality or range

of teaching and learning;

 personnel issues, including a high staff sickness absence rate, high occurrence of grievance

procedures, or significant recruitment and retention issues.

5. The Core Offer to Schools

In allocating resources to support any school, consideration will be given to the likelihood of an

imminent Ofsted/HMI inspection or monitoring visit, the school’s vulnerability based on previous

judgements and current performance.

5.1 Autumn term
The School Standards team will supplement existing evidence with a desk-top analysis of end-of-key

stage outcomes, and present an initial judgement of effectiveness to the November meeting of the

School Monitoring and Review Team (SMART – see Appendix A). That judgement will categorise

each school as either ‘on track’, ‘vulnerable’; or ‘at serious risk’. Following SMART approval of the

judgement, the Assistant Director (Learning and Achievement) will write to each head teacher and

chair of governors describing the local authority judgement on their school’s effectiveness.

Page 16



Wolverhampton City Council - Draft School Improvement Strategy v5.0 - 27 June 2014

7

If that judgment is:

On track: The local authority will arrange a visit to the school by a school standards officer later in

the school year. The objective of the visit is to:

 measure the judgement made against the school’s self-evaluation;

 clarify its basis to head teacher and chair of governors;

 identify good or outstanding practice; and,

 seek the head teacher’s permission to share that practice with other schools and name the

school as a partner willing to offer school-led support to other schools.

Vulnerable: In the case of a maintained school , the local authority will arrange a 1-day school

review by a school standards officer in the Autumn/early Spring term. The review will test the

validity of the local authority’s judgement. The review will:

 clarify the evidence leading to the judgement to head teacher and Chair as necessary;

 measure the judgement against the school’s self-evaluation;

 identify the specific areas of concern and ascertain the school’s plan to address them;

 confirm which other schools/partners might be able to offer school-to-school support,

perhaps through the creation of an informal partnership;

 explain that the school’s actions to address the concerns will be subject to regular review by

the School Monitoring and Review Team (SMART).

In the case of an academy the local authority will inform the Regional Schools Commissioner of any

concerns.

At serious risk: The School Standards Team will form a School Monitoring and Improvement Group

(SMIG – see Appendix B), chaired by the Head of Standards and Vulnerable Children (or their

representative), to which the head teacher and chair of governors will be invited. The local authority

will target resources to support the governors, head teacher and senior staff through a process of

school review that leads to an appropriate action plan targeting the areas of greatest concern.

Appendix D illustrates some of the available models of support.

In the case of an academy the local authority will inform the Regional Schools Commissioner of its

serious concerns.

5.2 Spring term
The February SMART meeting will consider in-year evidence on attendance, exclusion, and the

school’s compliance with its duties under the admission and safeguarding regulations. The Assistant

Director (Learning and Achievement) will write to each head teacher and chair of governors,

summarising the local authority’s view on practice. If concerns are sufficient then the letter will

inform the head teacher and chair (and Regional Schools Commissioner if an academy) of any

change to the local authority’s judgement and any response to the change.

5.3 Summer term
SMART will continue to meet half termly and the Assistant Director (Learning and Achievement) will

write a third, updating, letter to head teachers and chairs of maintained schools describing the local

authority’s judgement on financial health, supplemented by any concerns or good practice relating

to personnel matters and evidence of governor effectiveness.

Page 17



Wolverhampton City Council - Draft School Improvement Strategy v5.0 - 27 June 2014

8

6. Operational Summary

SCHOOLS

WOLVERHAMPTON CITY COUNCIL

School Monitoring And Review Team
Head of Standards & Vulnerable Children (Chair); School Standards Team; Principal
Schools Finance Officer; Head of Early Help; Head of Admissions; Governance Team
Manager; BSF Team Manager; SEN Team Manager; Learning & Achievement Project

Officer - Appendix A

Evidence of School Effectiveness:
- outcomes
- senior leadership effectivness
- governor effectiveness
- safeguarding
- finance & personnel

Local Authority Judgment

Schools identified for a School
Monitoring & Improvement
Group

Reporting on actions/
interventions etc.

Agreed future actions or
interventions
- Appendix D & Appendix F

School Monitoring & Improvement Group
Head of Standards & Vulnerable Children (Chair); Headteacher; Chair of Governors (and

other officers/staff as necessary) - Appendix B

Standards & Vulnerable Pupils Monitoring Group
Assistant Director Learning and Achievement (Chair); Assistant Director/HoS Community

Directorate; Head of School Standards & Vulnerable Children; Head of Looked After
Children (Community); Head of Finance (Delivery); Chief Human Resources Officer;

Research and Assessment Manager (Learning and Achievement) - Appendix C

Headteachers and Governors
leading increasingly autonomous, self-managing institutions

Impact of School Action Plan

Statutory intervention &
cross-council support
- Appendix E

Strategic Director (Education & Enterprise) & Strategic Director (Community)

Lead Member and Elected Member Scrutiny Board

Page 18



Wolverhampton City Council - Draft School Improvement Strategy v5.0 - 27 June 2014

9

APPENDIX A: School Monitoring and Review Team (SMART)

Membership

Head of Standards and Vulnerable Children (Chair); members of the School Standards Service; Principal

Schools Finance Officer; Head of Early Help; Head of Admissions; School Workforce and Governance

Manager; BSF/Asset Team Manager; SEN Team Manager; Commissioning and Compliance Officer; Head of

Schools’ HR; Head of Schools’ Audit.

Terms of reference

SMART meetings take responsibility for monitoring and reviewing evidence of school performance; risk-

assessing each school vulnerability as ‘on track’, ‘vulnerable’, or ‘at serious risk’; agreeing any intervention

and monitoring its impact.

SMART meetings take place each half-term. They:

 ensure that there is a regular, rigorous and transparent process of monitoring and review;

 identify good school practice that can be shared across Wolverhampton, and beyond;

 ensure timely identification of schools that are ‘vulnerable’, or ‘at serious risk’ so that plans can be

agreed to address concerns;

 monitor evidence of inclusion practice and the outcomes of vulnerable groups;

 ensure that effective strategies are in place to address issues of under performance by schools,

pupils or groups of pupils;

Outputs

 A letter, every Autumn, to each head teacher and chair of governors, notifying them of the local

authority’s judgment, based on the last set of attainment and progress outcomes and trends;

 A letter, every Spring, to each head teacher and chair of governors, notifying them of the local

authority’s judgment, based on evidence of in-year inclusion/safeguarding practice, and trends;

 A letter, every Summer, to each head teacher and chair of governors of a maintained school,

notifying them of the local authority’s judgment, based on evidence of fionancial and HR health;

 A directory of good and outstanding practice to support school-led improvement partnership

working;

 Regular review of progress against school improvement plans and decision making on escalation

to, or de-escalation from, a SMIG (see Appendix B).

Page 19



Wolverhampton City Council - Draft School Improvement Strategy v5.0 - 27 June 2014

10

APPENDIX B: School Monitoring and Improvement Group (SMIG)

Membership

Head of Standards and Vulnerable Children (Chair); Headteacher; Chair of Governors; and other

officers/staff as necessary.

Terms of reference

A SMIG is formed when a school is risk assessed as ‘at serious risk’. The SMIG provides a focussed

opportunity for the Head of the Standards & Vulnerable Children to meet with the head teacher and Chair

of Governors, and will only go ahead when both are available.

The SMIG meeting will both share the concerns leading to the local authority judgement and seek to

agree a collaborative strategy and action plan to address them (which would be the OfSTED Action Plan if

the SMIG was triggered by OfSTED inspection.

The SMIG meeting will subsequently monitor and evaluate the impact of the agreed strategy, and action

plan, feeding back to the governing body as a whole, and to SMART.

While a SMIG will normally be called together as a result of a decision by SMART, the Head of Standards

& Vulnerable Children, and Assistant Director (Learning and Achievement) reserve the right to call one if

evidence suggests it is needed.

Outputs

 School Improvement Plan/OfSTED Action Plan including brokered support/interventions;

 Evaluation of the impact of support/interventions on agreed indicators, every 2 months (or more

often if required);

 Regular reporting of the impact of support/interventions on agreed indicators to governors and

the Assistant Director (Learning and Achievement), as required;

 Opportunity for governors to develop the skills needed to be a critical friend, in partnership with

staff and officers, jointly reviewing the effectiveness of the plan;

 Where the SMIG is having a positive impact, and concerns are being addressed, the SMART

meeting may recommend de-escalation from a SMIG to less formal intervention/review.

 Where a SMIG does not have an impact and improvement is insufficiently swift, then the Head of

Standards and Vulnerable Children will make recommendations to the Assistant Director (Learning

and Achievement) regarding the use of the local authority’s statutory powers. See ‘Schools causing

concern - Statutory guidance for local authorities’ (2014).

Page 20



Wolverhampton City Council - Draft School Improvement Strategy v5.0 - 27 June 2014

11

APPENDIX C: Standards and Vulnerable Pupils Monitoring Group (SVPMG)

Membership

Assistant Director Learning and Achievement (Chair); Assistant Director/HoS Community Directorate; Head

of School Standards and Vulnerable Children; Head of Looked After Children (Community); Head of

Finance (Delivery); Chief Human Resources Officer; Research and Assessment Manager (Learning and

Achievement) -

Terms of reference

SVPMG meetings bring together relevant senior officers from the Community and Education and

Enterprise Directorates. In this way they enable a corporate/cross-directorate level of monitoring and

review of all schools and settings.

The Standards and Vulnerable Children Group will meet half termly, shortly after each SMART meeting,

and receive reports from SMART that:

 provide timely and accurate analyses of data that identify pupils, groups of pupils, schools or

settings, which are vulnerable or at serious risk;

 authorise effective interventions to achieve improvement of those schools or settings at risk of

decline or failure;

Outputs

SVPMG will:

 provide robust strategic scrutiny of statutory and non-statutory, national and local authority, data

and intelligence. This will include school, setting and relevant local authority service, reports and

external reports such as Ofsted/HMI inspection and monitoring reports;

 ensure appropriate cross-directorate challenge, support and resources are made available to those

schools and settings identified as being at risk, so as to achieve the maximum impact on the

outcomes of children & young people;

 agree appropriate cross-directorate actions and strategies are put in place to support the

continued improvement of the educational outcomes of vulnerable pupils and groups of

vulnerable pupils;

 report to the council’s Strategic Executive Board, appropriate member forums, and schools’ forum

on the progress of vulnerable pupil groups, schools and settings.

Page 21



Wolverhampton City Council - Draft School Improvement Strategy v5.0 - 27 June 2014

12

APPENDIX D: Models of support
The council’s intention is to provide swift and easy access to the support required by a school to pursue its

improvement journey. In proposing and supporting actions or interventions the local authority will be

guided by the shared principles underlying this strategy (see Section 2). Though DfE statutory guidance

(Schools Causing Concern, May 2014) is clear that local authorities should ‘focus their school improvement

activity on the schools they maintain’, raising any concerns they have about an academy’s performance

directly with the Department for Education, Wolverhampton will encourage academies to collaborate with

the local authority and maintained schools in the city’s improvement journey.

In addition to the direct support from the local authority described in Section 5, additional support will be

sought from the following as appropriate:

Commissioned Providers

There are a variety of independent providers of educational support with which the local authority has close

working relationships. It will use these relationships to commission appropriate, differentiated, support to

meet the needs of the individual school.

School partnerships

School partnerships are an effective mechanism for system-led, sustainable, school improvement.

Partnerships can be formal, with defined governance and budgets, such as the Local Education Partnership

(LEP), the Wolverhampton School Improvement Partnership (WSIP), or a Teaching School Alliance, or more

informal.

Informal partnerships may come together because of a shared locality responsibility, shared areas of interest

or development, or shared needs for improvement (see above). They can have a sustained existence, such

as a Learning Community, or come together for a defined period of time until the need that brought them

together is satisfied.

National/Local Leaders of Education (NLE/LLE) & Specialist Leaders of Education (SLEs)

These outstanding head teachers, senior, and middle leaders have the skills to support individuals or

teams in similar positions in other schools. They understand what outstanding leadership practice in their

area of expertise looks like and are skilled in helping other leaders to achieve it in their own context. They

will …

 provide support and challenge for head teachers to assist in securing improvement or in

developing a fresh perspective on issues presenting considerable challenge;

 contribute to the support and challenge for the head teachers of vulnerable and underperforming

schools in relation to school improvement plans with a particular focus on raising achievement;

 act as professional partners (mentors) for new head teachers to assist during the transition period.

Page 22



Wolverhampton City Council - Draft School Improvement Strategy v5.0 - 27 June 2014

13

National Leaders of Governance (NLGs)

National Leaders of Governance are highly effective chairs of governors, who use their skills and

experience to support chairs of governors in other schools and academies. Examples of circumstances

where National Leaders of Governance might be deployed are where:

 a school is in an Ofsted or Local Authority category, or is at vulnerable to that outcome;

 schools are in a newly formed federation or trust;

 attainment is below floor standards;

 a school is in transition to academy status;

 two schools face amalgamation;

 the Chair of Governors is new in a school in challenging circumstances;

 the working practices for a chair, head teacher or leadership group need developing

APPENDIX E: Statutory powers of intervention in maintained schools
Local authorities’ statutory responsibilities for educational excellence are set out in section 13a of the

Education Act 1996. That duty states that a local authority must exercise its education functions with a

view to promoting high standards. Local authorities are discharging this duty within the context of

increasing autonomy and changing accountability for schools, alongside an expectation that improvement

should be led by schools themselves.

‘Schools Causing Concern – statutory guidance for local authorities’ (2014) sets out the local authority’s

role in relation to maintained schools that are causing concern, and this document should be read

alongside that guidance. It sets out the importance of early intervention and of swift and robust action to

tackle failure, including the use of Warning Notices and Interim Executive Boards (IEB) in maintained

schools.

The local authority has no statutory powers of intervention in academies. Wolverhampton will, therefore,

raise any concerns relating to academy performance with the Regional Schools Commissioner.

Schools that are ‘eligible for intervention’
Part 4 of, and Schedule 6 to, the 2006 Act set out that a (maintained) school is ‘eligible for intervention’

where:

 a warning notice has been given (under section 60) with which the school has failed to comply or

has failed to comply to the satisfaction of the local authority and the local authority have also

given the governing body a written notice that they propose to exercise one or more of their

powers under Part 4 of the 2006 Act;

 a teachers' pay and conditions warning notice has been given (section 60A)4 with which the school

has failed to comply and the local authority have also given written notice to the governing body

that they propose to exercise one or more of their powers under Part 4 of the 2006 Act;

 a school requires significant improvement (section 61); and,

 a school requires special measures (section 62).

Schools that are ‘eligible for intervention’ as a result of a warning notice
Warning notices will be used as an early form of intervention, particularly where standards are

unacceptably low and other action or intervention have not led to improvement.

A warning notice is likely to be issued where:

 the standards of performance of pupils at the school are unacceptably low and are likely to remain

so unless the authority exercise their powers under Part 4 of the 2006 Act; or,

Page 23



Wolverhampton City Council - Draft School Improvement Strategy v5.0 - 27 June 2014

14

 there has been a serious breakdown in the way the school is managed or governed which is

prejudicing, or likely to prejudice, such standards of performance; or,

 the safety of pupils or staff at the school is threatened (whether by a breakdown of discipline or

otherwise).

The definition of what constitutes ‘low standards of performance’ is set out in section 60(3) of the 2006

Act. When making a decision to issue a warning notice, Wolverhampton City Council will adopt the

definition of ‘low standards of performance’ that is found in the 2014 statutory guidance. That definition

encompasses schools where:

 standards are below the floor, on either attainment or progress of pupils;

 low standards are achieved by disadvantaged pupils;

 there has been a sudden drop in performance;

 there is sustained historical underperformance of pupils (including disadvantaged pupils) in

relation to expected achievement or prior attainment; or

 the school’s performance is not meeting the expected standards of comparable schools.

The council will also consider issuing a warning notice to schools that have not responded robustly or

rapidly enough to a recommendation by Ofsted to commission an external review of the use and impact

of the Pupil Premium &/or a review of governance arrangements.

Schools eligible for intervention as a result of an OfSTED inspection outcome
The local authority does not have to issue a warning notice prior to intervention if a school has been

judged by OfSETD as ‘requiring significant improvement’, or suitable for ‘special measures’.

If either of these judgements is applied to a school which has already been given a warning notice, the

school is eligible for intervention whether or not the 15 day period of compliance in the warning notice

(see below) has expired, or the governing body has made representations, or intend to make

representations to Ofsted.

The power of the Secretary of State to direct a local authority
The Secretary of State has the power to direct a local authority to consider issuing a warning notice in

specified terms and then to direct the local authority to give a warning notice in those terms, where a local

authority have decided not to do so. Wolverhampton City Council will carefully consider its response to

such direction.

Issuing a warning notice
Section 60 of the 2006 Act sets out the provisions relating to warning notices.

If Wolverhampton City Council issues a warning notice, it will be sent to the Chair of Governors of the

school, and copied to the Headteacher. It will set out:

 the local authority’s concerns in some detail , explaining the facts as it understands them, and the

circumstances which are giving it cause for concern;

 the action(s) which the local authority requires the governing body to take in order to address the

concerns raised;

 the date, 15 working days after the date of the warning notice, by which time the local authority

expects the governing body to either have complied, and addressed the concerns set out in the

warning notice, or have made representations to Ofsted against the warning notice (details of how

to do this are in the statutory guidance which can be found at:

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/schools-causing-concern; and,

 the action which the local authority is likely to take (under one or more of sections 63 to 66 of the

2006 Act or otherwise) if the governing body does not take the required action(s). A list of the local

authority’s powers of intervention can be found below.

Page 24



Wolverhampton City Council - Draft School Improvement Strategy v5.0 - 27 June 2014

15

In the case of a Church of England Church school or a Roman Catholic Church school, a copy of the

warning notice will also be sent the appropriate diocesan authority.

In the case of a foundation or voluntary school, a copy of the warning notice will also be sent the person

who appoints the foundation governors.

In all cases the warning notice will also be copied to Ofsted using the email address:

warningnotices@ofsted.gov.uk.

Compliance with a warning notice
The council will write to the Chair of Governors and Headteacher if it is not satisfied that the governing

body has complied with the requirements required in the warning notice, by the date defined in the

warning notice. In that letter it will notify the school if it intends to exercise any of its powers under Part 4

of the 2006 Act. The council will always write to the Chair and Headteacher within 2 months of the date of

the warning notice.

The local authority’s powers of intervention
Where a school is eligible for intervention there are a number of powers the local authority can use to

drive school improvement. These interventions are set out in sections 63-66 of the 2006 Act.

The local authority can:

 suspend the delegated authority for the governing body to manage a school’s budget;

 appoint an Interim Executive Board (IEB);

 appoint additional governors;

 require the governing body to:

o enter into a contract or other arrangement for specified services of an advisory nature with

a specified person (who may be the governing body of another school);

o make arrangements to collaborate with the governing body of another school;

o make arrangements to collaborate with a further education body; or,

o take specified steps for the purpose of creating or joining a federation.

APPENDIX F: Governance

The chief inspector of schools, Sir Michael Wilshaw, has said: ‘We want governors to work with the

leaders of their schools to be both strategic and pragmatic in delivering good outcomes for all children

and young people. We want them to strengthen schools’ professional leadership by appointing the right

people to the right jobs. And we want them to hold school leaders to account for the progress and

outcomes they achieve in their schools.’

Lord Hill, the under-secretary of state for schools, has commented: ‘It is absolutely clear to me that the

most important decision-making group in any school is the governing body.’

Steve Acklam, formerly chief executive of the School Governors One-Stop Shop has said that:

‘Governors are responsible for appointing and performance-managing the Headteacher; allocating and

managing the budget; ratifying the school’s future direction; and ensuring that the school’s results

continue to improve, giving every child the best possible start in life.’

The role of Governors
The autonomy of every school, whatever its designation, is increasing. Schools have large budgets and,

academies have additional responsibilities for property, staff, and ensuring compliance with the

Memorandum and Articles of Association.

Page 25



Wolverhampton City Council - Draft School Improvement Strategy v5.0 - 27 June 2014

16

Working in partnership with the Headteacher and the school’s senior management team, the governing

body must ensure that these accountabilities are effectively and professionally managed and ensure the

school continues to improve. In order to do so, the governing body must be an appropriate blend of

expertise, experience, aspirations, ages and cultures.

The importance of the Chair of Governors in leading the governing body is of increasing importance.

The mix of skills in the governing body
The skills that are essential for an effective governing body are: finance; personnel; strategic planning;

project management, and communications.

In addition, skills or experience in marketing, data analysis, team working, change management, and IT,

can be very helpful.

Governor recruitment
A governing body needs governors who are committed to helping give children the best possible start in

life and have skills that will add value to the governing body.

Statutory guidance (‘The constitution of governing bodies of maintained schools - Statutory guidance for

governing bodies of maintained schools and local authorities in England’ - May 2014) makes it clear that

all governing bodies must be constituted under the 2012 Constitution Regulations or the 2012

Federation Regulations, as appropriate, by 1 September 2015.

In reviewing their current constitution and re-constituting the governing body before September 2015, the

statutory guidance highlights the following regarding governor appointment and identification of an

appropriate skills mix:

 Governing bodies should be no bigger than necessary to secure the range of skills they need.

Smaller governing bodies are likely to be more cohesive and dynamic.

 A key consideration in the appointment and election of all new governors should be the skills and

experience the governing body needs to be effective.

 Governing bodies should use a skills audit to identify any specific gaps that need to be filled in the

skills, knowledge and experience of existing governors.

 Before being nominated for election or appointment, all prospective governors should be helped

to understand the role of a governor and the governing bodies’ code of conduct.

 Anyone appointing governors to the governing body must appoint someone they believe has the

skills to contribute to effective governance and the success of the school.

 Governing bodies and local authorities should take steps to inform governor elections so that the

electorate understands the extent to which nominated candidates possess the skills the governing

body ideally requires.

 Foundation governors have a particular purpose to safeguard the character of the school and

ensure it is conducted in accordance with any founding documents, but otherwise every governors’

role is to govern the school in the best interest of pupils, not to represent the interests of the

constituency from which they were elected or appointed.

 Meaningful and effective engagement with parents, staff and the wider community is vital. It is not

the role of governing bodies to provide this through their membership. They need to assure

themselves that specific arrangements are in place for this purpose.

 Governing bodies should review their effectiveness regularly, including the extent to which their

size and structure is fit for purpose and their members have the necessary skills.

Page 26



Wolverhampton City Council - Draft School Improvement Strategy v5.0 - 27 June 2014

17

 Governing more than one school can generate a more strategic perspective and more robust

accountability through the ability to compare and contrast across schools.

 All governing bodies must be constituted under the 2012 Constitution Regulations or the 2012

Federation Regulations, as appropriate, by 1 September 2015.

Previously, governing bodies often looked to the local authority or the parent-teacher association when

they needed to recruit governors. That is no longer realistic or appropriate. One option is for governing

bodies to work through the charity School Governors’ One-Stop Shop (SGOSS) that exists to find

volunteers with transferable skills to become governors.

School Governing Body Self-Evaluation
Outstanding governing bodies know themselves as well as they know their school. The following outline

for a governing body self-evaluation offers a structured approach to establishing that self-evaluation:

Does the governing body have the right mix of skills?

 Has the governing body completed the annual skills audit?

 Is there evidence of appointing governors on the basis of their skills and the needs of the school?

Is the governing body as effective as it could be?

 Do governors understand their roles and responsibilities?

 Does the governing body have a professional clerk?

 Is there evidence that the governing body runs meetings efficiently?

 How large is the governors’ training and development budget?

 Is there evidence of every governor taking advantage of the training and development they need

to carry out their role effectively?

 Does the governing body know about good practice from across the country?

 Is the size, composition and committee structure of the governing body appropriate to support

effective working?

 Does every member of the governing body make a regular contribution?

 Does the governing body undertake an annual review of its performance?

Does the school have a clear vision?

 Has the governing body developed long-term aims for the school with clear priorities in an

ambitious school development plan which they regularly monitor and review?

 Does the governing body’s strategic planning cycle drive its activities and agenda setting?

Does the governing body hold the school’s leaders to account?

 Do governors understand the school’s performance data well enough to properly hold school

leaders to account?

 How effective is governors’ performance management of the Headteacher?

 Are governors’ financial management systems robust and do they ensure best value for money?

Are governors properly engaged with the school community, the wider school sector, and the

world beyond schools?

 How do governors listen to, and understand, their pupils, parents and staff?

 How do governors regularly report to their parents and local community?

 What benefits do the governing body draw from collaboration with other schools and other

sectors, locally and nationally?

Does the chair show strong and effective leadership?

 Does the governing body undertake a regular 360 review of the chair’s performance?

 Is there evidence of effective succession planning in the governing body?

 Are the chair and committee chairs subject to annual election?

Page 27



Wolverhampton City Council - Draft School Improvement Strategy v5.0 - 27 June 2014

18

Are governors having an impact on the outcomes for pupils?

 How much has the school improved over the last three years, and what has the governing body’s

contribution been to this?

APPENDIX G: School Standards team traded offer
Schools should contact their named School Standards officer to discuss the support offer available to

schools or academies, beyond the Core Offer described in Section 5.

APPENDIX H: Current local authority responsibilities for children, families &

schools:
Chief Executive
Simon Warren

Strategic Director
Community

(DCS)
Sarah Norman

Strategic Director
Education and

Enterprise
Tim Johnson

Assistant Director
Education and

Enterprise
James McElligott

Assistant Director
Children, Young People

and Families
Emma Bennett

Assistant Director
Health, Wellbeing

and Disability
Viv Griffin

- Standards and Vulnerable Pupils:
Early Years;
Special Educational Needs; Pupil Referral
Units;
English as an Additional Language;
School Workforce and Governance;
Parent Partnership

- School Planning and Resources:
School Places and Transport including
Admissions and Appeals, Pupil Services,
School Organisation;
Capital and Assets including Building Schools
for the Future, Towers Outdoor Centre;
Service Level Agreements

- Skills Development: Apprenticeships;
Adult Education;
Education Business Partnerships;
Employer Responsiveness

- Looked After Children: social work
services, residential care, fostering service,
adoption service and services for care
leavers; Corporate Parenting and education
service for LAC.

- Children in Need and Child Protection:
social work services to children in need and
those in need of protection together with a
supervised Contact Service, intensive family
support service and family group
conferencing provision.

- Youth Offending Service: a multi-agency
partnership service aimed at reducing
offending and re-offending by young people.

- Early Help (0-5) - (Children & Family
Support Centres): provision of Children’s
Centres for 0-5 year olds and their families
and an Early Years Service.

- Early Help (5-18): Including 8 Children &
Family Centre Teams delivering early help
and education support to children aged 5 –
18+ via a range of professionals.

- Youth: Targeted Youth Services and
facilitation of Youth Council.

- Transformation Programme Team: a team
of Business Change Managers supporting
transformation across the Community
Directorate.

- Children’s Commissioning: children’s
commissioners have key roles in the
strategic development of services, and in the
development of quality, cost effective
delivery whether externally or internally
provided.

- Health and Wellbeing Board: development
of a Health and Wellbeing Strategy and
integrated working across partners. Joint
commissioning across health and social care.

- Commissioning services: for Physical and
Sensory Disability; Learning Disability,
Mental Health, Children with a Disability and
CAMHS.

- Partnership Development: adults and
children links with Clinical Commissioning
Groups, NHS Local Area Team, NHS
Foundation Trusts, Voluntary sector, private
sector.

- Housing Support and Social Inclusion:
commissioning Supporting People services
for younger adults.

- Mental Health: assessment and care
management and provider services.

- All Age Disability Services: assessment and
care management and provider services.

- Emergency Duty Team.

- Troubled Families Programme.

- Special Education Needs.

Page 28



Agenda Item No: 6

James McElligott
Assistant Director

Learning and Achievement

Kate Bond
Head of Standards and

Vulnerable Pupils

Ian Bailey
Head of School Planning

and Resources

Research and
Assessment

Teacher Advisor
(New Arrivals)

Emma Balchin
Service Manager

School
Workforce and
Governance

Parent
Partnership

Standards
Advisors

Bill Hague
Service Manager

School Places
and Transport

Marc Webb
Service Manager

Capital and
Assets

OTHER
SERVICES

Planning and
Resources

Co-ordination
Officer

Place Planning

Admissions &
Appeals

Home to School
Transport

BSF

Towers Outdoor
Centre

ONE

SIMS (incl
Archives)

eServices

Learning
Technologies

Music Service

Admin Support

P
age 29



Agenda Item No: 6

P
age 30


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the previous meeting ( 26.3.14 )
	5 Draft Wolverhampton School Improvement Strategy
	WCC School Improvement Strategy Final Version prior to consultation 27 6   final

	6 Learning and Achievement Structure Chart

